ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2014
3:10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Reinbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 90
"An Act establishing a tenporary program in the Departnent of
Health and Social Services for testing newborns for baseline
vitamn D | evels.”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HB 90
SHORT TI TLE: TESTI NG NEWBORNS FOR VI TAM N D
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

01/ 30/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 13 (H) HSS, FIN

02/ 21/ 13 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 21/ 13 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 21/ 13 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 06/ 14 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

CAROL WAGNER, M D.

Department of Pediatrics

Darby Children's Research Institute
Medi cal University of South Carolina
Charl eston, South Carolina

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -1- February 6, 2014



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during
di scussi on of HB 90.

STEPHANI E WRI GHTSMAN- Bl RCH, Chi ef

Wrnen, Children & Famly Health

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during
di scussi on of HB 90.

ABEL BULT-1TQ, Ph. D.

Departnment of Biology & Wldlife

University of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 90.

WARD HURLBURT, M D., Chief Medical Oficer/Director

Division of Public Health

Central Ofice

Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during
di scussi on of HB 90.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:10: 26 PM

CHAIR PETE HHGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:10 p. m
Representatives H ggins, Keller, Seaton, and Reinbold were
present at the call to order. Representatives Pruitt and Tarr
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

[Before the commttee was the proposed committee substitute (CS)
for HB 90, |labeled 28-LS0376\U, M schel, 2/14/13, which the
commttee had adopted as the working draft on 2/21/13]

HB 90- TESTI NG NEVWBORNS FOR VI TAM N D

3:11: 23 PM

CHAIR H GA@ NS announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 90, "An Act establishing a tenporary program in

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2014



the Departnment of Health and Social Services for testing
newborns for baseline vitamn D |levels."

3:11: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 90, |abeled 28-LS0376\ O, M schel, 2/4/14,
as the working draft.

CHAI R HI GG NS obj ected for discussion
3:12:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, as the bill sponsor, explained that HB 90
had been introduced |last year and its purpose was to obtain for
one year, a sanpling of Vitamn D levels at birth fromall the
children born in the State of Al aska. He offered background
which referenced a variety of studies on the effects of Vitamn
D levels in Australia, Spain, and Philadel phia, Pennsylvania.
[I ncluded in nmenbers' packets] He pointed out that, in Al aska,
the shortage of sunshine as well as the wearing of |ong sleeves
for protection from nosquitoes, restricted good Vitamn D
| evel s. He declared that the goal of the proposed bill was, for
one year, to sanmple two drops of <cord blood from newborn
children, in order to nonitor population |evels of Vitam n D

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Chair Higgins, stated that
cord blood from the placenta would be taken at birth, so there
woul d not be any need for a blood draw

CHAIR HIGA NS asked if this was as accurate as a toe prick on
the infant.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that, as infant blood was
circulating through the placenta, this would be as accurate.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked why bl ood was taken at birth, and
not during pregnancy. She asked if this was going to be a
mandate, which she declared "is sonething we don't do." She
guesti oned what was the ultimte goal.

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON, in response, established that the
proposed bill was an attenpt to understand the extent of Vitamn
D deficiency in Al aska. Pointing to the study in Australia, he
reported that the |owest 25 percent of that Vitamn D popul ation
was simlar to the bottom 50 percent of the United States
popul ati on. He pointed out that a high population of children

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 3- February 6, 2014



entered school with severe to noderate |anguage inpairnment in
Al aska, which he surmised could be cured with higher |evels of
Vitam n D

3:18: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that the original proposed HB 90
had requested that the Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) adm nister the program however, the fiscal note had
indicated a cost of $5.5 million for two years. The current
proposed committee substitute, Version O was for a program
within DHSS to be administered by a non-profit organization
affiliated with a university. As there had al so been a request
for an analysis of all the data, the charge would now be $60 per
test. There was an average of 10,000 babies born in Al aska each
year, so the current fiscal note was for $600, 000. Addr essi ng
the concern of Representative Reinbold for the health benefits,
as well as the concern for a broad enough opt out clause, he
directed attention to a program called "Protect Qur Children

Now." [Included in nenbers’ packet s] This program was
adm nistered by a public health non-profit group, "G assroots
Health," which worked with the Medical University of South
Car ol i na. He reported that this program was being used in

Omaha, as well as South Carolina, and that it was a voluntary
program which took blood tests in the first 12-16 weeks of
pregnancy to establish a baseline, and could then nmake
adjustnments with Vitamn D supplenents. Each 10 weeks of
pregnancy, another blood test was adm nistered. He decl ared
that this program would bring science into the project to help
determne the health of newborn children and wonmen in Al aska
communities. He directed attention to page 21, which listed the
total cost to be $450, 000, including $90,000 for on-site support
in the villages and hospitals to ensure that the program worked
and $50,000 in supplenents. [Included in nenbers' packets] He
noted that this funding would accomopdate 500 participants, and

woul d require coordination with |ocal groups. He offered his
understanding that, in South Carolina, there was coordination
with Blue Cross-Blue Shield; as each pre-term birth cost about
$50, 000, there was a potential for huge cost savings. He

declared that three different research projects [Included in
menbers' packets] had shown Vitamn D supplenentation during
pregnancy would lower the pre-term birth rate and adverse
out cones. He discussed his search for program partners in
Al aska, noting his discussions wth Providence Hospital and the
Al aska Native Health Board. He declared that this program woul d
not just be for research, but would also be an achievenent in
public health. He pointed out that the program would supply

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -4- February 6, 2014



baseline informati on for wonen when pregnant and what Vitamn D
suppl ementati on was necessary to attain the recognized |evels
for inproved health.

3:26: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked the conmmittee for an opt in, not an
opt out, in order to gather data from a |arge sanple. He
menti oned Fairbanks Menorial Hospi t al as another program
possibility. He declared that these partnerships could |ower
the nunber of children entering school with severe to noderate
| anguage inpairnments, a "huge nental health advance for the
State of Al aska."

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked if the timng for the proposed
bill was appropriate, as budgets were tight.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that there would not be any cost
to the patient, with a total program cost of $450, 000. Thi s
woul d include the supplenental Vitamin D, as well as all four
blood tests: the test at 12-16 weeks when entering the program
the test at 22-26 weeks, the test at 32-36 weeks, and the test
at birth. He reiterated that they were searching for partners
to help fund the program as it required on-site participation.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD offered her belief that this sounded
like a public relations canpaign for Vitamin D and its many
benefits. She directed attention to Version O Section 1, and
asked which research group would be contracted, who would have
access to the information, and what would be the cost of the
contract with the university.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that "Grass Roots Health,"” a non-
profit organization connected wth the Mdical University of
South Carolina, would be the research group. He directed
attention to the aforenentioned problens for an opt out clause
that only supplied data w thout any inprovenent to health. He
reported that Version O included participation with the "Protect
Qur Children Now' program which allowed for 500 wonen to opt
in, at a cost of $450, 000. In further response to the concerns
of Representative Reinbold, he declared that there would be a
need to generate partners in Al aska, and that the program result

woul d be inproved nedical outcones for wonen and babies. He
recogni zed the need to offer another commttee substitute which
woul d address these concerns. He declared that the total cost

of $450,000 could be substantially |ess, dependent on the
participants.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- February 6, 2014



3:33:15 PM

CHAIR HIGGA NS clarified that there was no intent to pass the
proposed CS out of commttee today.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, asking for nore information to the use of
the baseline information, suggested that it was unusual to have
specific legislation for a specific study.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response, opined that the data would
deternm ne better pregnancy outcones, as adequate Vitamn D could
reduce or elimnate many of the adverse outcones in pregnancy.
He suggested that this would result in huge savings in Al aska
as well as a great statistical base for the effect of adequate
Vitamn D during pregnancy. He expressed his hope that sone
wonen would continue to work with the program to allow further
study of their children and the effect on Al askans. He pointed
out that this tw year project to collect information, save
nmoney, and protect the health of new born children would be of

"trenmendous value to us." He remarked that the only avail able
Vitamin D data was for the entire US and Canada, even though
Al aska was the northernnpost state. It was inportant for

Al askans to see outcones of the studies done in Al aska, and this
project would put applicable science toward pronoting the health
of wonen.

3:38: 04 PM
CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.

DR. CAROCL WAGNER, Departnent of Pediatrics, Darby Children's
Research Institute, Medical University of South Carolina, said
that Representative Seaton had captured the results of the
various studies, and she reported that sunny South Carolina also
had profound Vitam n D deficiency. She established that it was
necessary to go outside and uncover in order to absorb the
necessary Vitamn D. She pointed out that Vitamn D cane not
only fromdiet, but from exposure to sunshine, as 90 percent of
Vitam n D canme through synthesis in the skin. She reported that
the average Anerican diet supplied about 200 11U of Vitam n D,
wher eas summer sunshine in a bathing suit would generate 10,000
U of Vitamin D. She declared that a pre-natal vitam n supplied
about 400 IU.  She said that there were w de spread deficiencies
t hroughout the United States, and there was even greater risk in
the higher latitudes, which included Al aska. She reported that
Vitamin D was actually a preprohornone, a precursor to an active

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 6- February 6, 2014



hornmone called 1,25-di-hydroxyvitamin D which acted in every
organ system in the body and every cell had a receptor for it.
She shared that studies were just beginning to show the inpact
of Vitamn D on white blood cell function and long |atency
di seases.

3:42:46 PM

CHAIR HHGE NS asked if South Carolina had a program simlar to
t he program proposed by Representative Seaton, and if there was
any data that this saved noney for the state from any Medicare
or Medicaid issues.

3:43: 24 PM

DR. WAGNER replied that there was not any data directly rel ated
to cost. She directed attention to an article fromthe Anmerican
Journal of Cbstetrics and Gynecology [Included in nenbers

packets] which presented the health effects from raising the
Vitamn D level during pregnancy. She pointed out that this
reduced the risk for pre-term |abor, pre-term birth, infection

and hypertensive disorders of pregnancy. She noted that, as the
cost for a pre-termbirth in a neo-natal intensive care unit was
$60, 000, prevention of one pre-termbirth was an equi val ent cost
savi ngs. She replied that the program was still gathering
information for the savings of tax dollars, and she offered to
share the information once it was avail abl e.

3:45:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the status and |ocations for
the Protect Your Children Now prograns.

DR. WAGNER replied that the sanme program was in Charleston, and
had been funded by the W K. Kellogg Foundation in 2012. She
reported that the first pregnancy trials were begun in 2004,
with the conmunity based project beginning in 2006. She rel ayed
that another comunity based project would begin in Colunbia,
South Carolina during the upcom ng year.

3:46: 37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for clarification that the only item
addressed by the program was collection of Vitamn D data on

newborn infants, and if any other applicable factors, including
patient history, were considered.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -7- February 6, 2014



DR. WAGNER, in response to Representative Keller, explained that
the program neasured naternal Vitamin D levels nonthly,
beginning after 10 weeks of gestation. The program also
collected wurine, analyzed the placenta, and |ooked at inmmune
function indicators. She noted that the primary outcone of the
project was to neasure maternal Vitam n D throughout pregnancy,
and to then foll ow the neuro-devel opnent of the children.

3:49: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that Version O had just | ooked
to acquire the status of cord blood; whereas, the current
project under discussion was to offer information for health
benefits and allow wonen to adjust the Vitamn D level during
pregnancy. He proposed to subnit another commttee substitute
based on the "Protect Qur Children Now' program and to nove
forward for partnerships in Alaska to inprove the maternal
status of Vitamin D, on a voluntary basis, and follow the health
outcones, simlar to the aforementioned Kellogg program He
noted that this would allow wonen to individually adjust their
Vitamin D status with suppl enents.

3:51: 57 PM

STEPHANI E  WRI GATSMAN- BI RCH, Chief, Wnen, Children & Famly
Health, D vision of Public Health, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services, said that she was avail abl e for questions.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked about the pronising trends projected
by the Vitamin D data. He asked if she would undertake a study
like this based on the current evidence, on her own, wthout
statute.

3:52:39 PM

M5. WRI GHTSMAN- BI RCH replied that her division had reviewed this
data, but she did not concur with the results of these studies.
She declared that a focus on public health, when health issues
and disparities were reviewed, required peer reviewed scientific
literature indicating a nodification in standard of practice.
She relayed that the difficulty, as the bill focused on
newborns, was that both the American College of QCbstetricians
and Gynecol ogists and the American Acadeny of Pediatrics had
wi t hdr awn recommendat i ons for Vitam n D | evel s and
suppl enent ati on. She reported that her division was not
research based, and required published guidelines and standards.
She stated that DHSS was not structured to engage in a simlar

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 8- February 6, 2014



st udy. She pointed out the controversy in the literature for
the type of blood testing, as rigorous research trials required

quality nmethodology and certified |aboratories. She expressed
concern for fitting all of this into a limted budget. She
declared a need to be considerate and thoughtful for an opt out
process in any research study. She asked about a process for

the collection and mailing of sanples to a research |aboratory
for those deliveries outside of hospitals, about 6 percent of
total births.

3:56: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked that she nonitor the legislation to
hel p shape the bill for its use by DHSS. He expressed concern
for any "scientific study directed by one sentence in a |law we
wite, with our limted understanding."”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative Keller,
stated that this was not a research project, but "predom nantly
putting science into practice on the health with an opt in
project for Alaskan wonen." He pointed out that "Grass Roots
Heal th" had an institutional review board. He allowed that
there could be a question if there was partnership with the
Al aska Native Health Board or the Al aska Native Tribal Health
Consortium He reiterated that this was a voluntary opt in
program not a research or a clinical trial project, and was
designed to pronote health and healthy outconmes for wonen in
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked for M. Birch to forward her
concerns to the conmttee. Expressing her surprise that the
American College of Cbstetricians and Gynecologists had not
supported Vitam n D suppl enments, she asked for a reason.

M5. WRIGHTSMAN-BIRCH replied that the Anerican College of
Qobstetricians and Gynecol ogists had not established acceptable
blood Vitamin D levels for pregnant wonen. She reported that
many national organizations which provide reconmendations for
practices had not firmy stated support of a specific level of
Vitam n D during pregnancy.

REPRESENTATI VE  REINBOLD asked for clarification for any
recommendation to Vitam n D suppl enents.

M5. WRIGHTSMAN-BIRCH said that she would research this and
report back.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - O- February 6, 2014



4:00: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his agreenent, as "sone of this
does get confusing because sonme of the people that are being
guoted, the Institute of Medicine, their job is to recommend to
manuf acturers what they should put in food," and stated that
they did not offer clinical practice guidelines. He reported
that the Endocrine Society recommended best clinical practices,
with a recomendation for 30 nanograns per mlliliter as the
m nimum |evel of Vitamn D He pointed out that the Cystic
Fi brosis Foundation also offered clinical practice guidelines
and al so recormended 30 nanograns per milliliter as the m nimum
| evel of Vitamin D. He pointed out that the American Coll ege of
Cbstetricians and Gynecologists did not recommend Vitamn D
suppl ements unless you lived in the northern latitudes, or had

dark skin, or were vegetarian. He directed attention to the
"unless" as it described Al aska and Northern Europe. He
suggested that the full recomrendations should be viewed when

revi ew ng best clinical practices.
4:02: 35 PM

ABEL BULT-ITQ Ph. D. Departnent of Biology & WIdlife,
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks, reported that he had 30 years of
research experience, and, although he did not study Vitam n D,
he had performed behavioral neuro-science and pharmal ogical
studies in rodents, with extensive literature review of Vitamn
D. He said that he also taught human anatony, sharing that
Vitamn D discussion arose on the first day of class when he

asked how many people were taking Vitamn D suppl enents. He
suggested to his students that they take 50,000 IU of Vitamn D
every day. He focused on other health issues, and the studies

showing correlations between Ilow levels of Vitamn D and
di sease, including breast cancer, prostate cancer, colon-recta
cancer, auto inmune diseases, Miltiple Sclerosis, and the

effects on the immune system He explained that the inmune
system killed pre-cancer cells. He listed Types 1 and 2
di abetes, hypertension, and heart disease, and shared that
Vitamn D receptors were in alnost every cell. He stated the

i nportance for the educational conponent of the proposed study
to teach pregnant wonmen about sufficient Vitamn D levels for

heal t hy babi es. He shared that studies had shown that the
| onger a person had sufficient Vitamn D levels, the larger the
health benefit. He declared that, as a scientist, he was

excited for the study as it was inportant for new nothers to
understand the benefits of good, healthy nutrition, specifically
wi th adequate levels of Vitamn D. He allowed that, as the cost

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -10- February 6, 2014



of health care in Alaska was rising quickly, it was necessary to
educate and assist people for "doing the right thing." He
expressed his support for the proposed bill as it educated the
parents and the children, which was so inportant to overal
heal t h.

4:08: 02 PM
CHAIR HI GA NS expressed his agreenent with Dr. Bult-Ito.
4:08:15 PM

WARD HURLBURT, M D., Chief Medical Oficer/Director, Division of
Public Health, Central Ofice, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services, said that he was avail able for questions.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked his opinion of the proposed bill.

DR. HURLBURT said that discussion of the proposed bill had
shifted froma testing program by DHSS to a sanpling of opt in,
with a follow up program He expressed his agreenment wth
Representative Seaton that Vitamn D was an essential nutrient,
especially for bone health. He reported that there were
dianetrically opposite conclusions, however, for its benefits.
He directed attention to the |Institute of Medicine, which
reviewed nmnedical issues, weighed the evidence, and offered
concl usi ons. He expressed his understanding that this was nuch
broader than sinply advising industry. He explained that the
United States Preventive Services Task Force was the entity for
recomrendations for vaccines and mninmum daily |evels of
vitam ns. The National Institute of Health and the Agency for
Heal t hcare Research and Quality |ooked at data and offered
conclusions to what this data support ed. He noted that there
were also private entities which nade evidence based deci sions.
He declared that all of these entities agreed that it cannot be
concluded that there was a reduction in cancers, nultiple
sclerosis, suicidal behavior, or ©periodontal disease wth
Vitam n D. He acknow edged that the proposed bill would add to
the body of know edge. He declared that this was not, however
a function of DHSS, and he suggested that it would nake nore
sense to present it through the University of Al aska. He
tendered his respectful disagreenent with the bill sponsor for
the benefits fromVitam n D

4:14:17 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked that the bill sponsor keep sending
commttee substitutes for proposed HB 90 to the Division of
Public Health for its feedback.

DR. HURLBURT expressed his agreenent.

CHAIR HIGA NS noted that the DHSS budget was $2.6 billion and
rising. He declared that preventive nedicine was the best cure
and would save noney. He expressed a need to start wth
sonet hi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his thanks, noting that he would
take into account all the attitudes, including those of the
Departnent of Health and Social Services. He stated that he
woul d continue to collect information and pronote public health,
as the collected data would be used to nmake public health
deci si ons. He declared that there wuld be a project
partnership to help pronote the health of Al askans.

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the proposed commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 90, Version O wuld be held over and public
testi nony woul d be kept open.

4:17. 47 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 4:17 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2014



